

**MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL  
HELD ON 13 OCTOBER 2021 AT 6.00 pm**

Attendance:

The Mayor (Councillor Hook ) (in the Chair)

Councillors Hook, Ms Ballard, Bateman, Mrs Batty, Beavis, Blackman, Bradley, Burgess, Carter, Casey, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Earle, Mrs Furlong, Hammond, Herridge, Mrs Hook, Mrs Huggins, Hutchison, Hylands, Jessop, Johnston, Mrs Jones, Miss Kelly, Meenaghan, Mitchell, Mrs Morgan, Murphy, Pepper, Philpott, Raffaelli, Scard and Westerby

---

**APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE**

Apologies for non attendance was received from Councillor Foster-Reed.

---

**DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

Declarations of interest were received as follows:

If allotments were discussed, Councillors Cully, Kelly and Westerby.

If the Hubs were discussed, Councillor Burgess, Councillor Earle, Hutchison, Chegwyn and Philpott

---

**TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 31ST MARCH 2021 AND 19TH MAY 2021**

Resolved: That the minutes of the meetings held on 31 March 2021 and 19 May 2021 be signed as true and correct records.

---

**TO CONSIDER MAYOR'S COMMUNICATION**

The Mayor advised that he was delighted that Heritage Open Days had been a success with over 70 events. He also advised that he had attended the RAOB who had launched their Christmas toy appeal collecting for Gosport and Fareham Family Aid and would welcome Members' support.

He advised that there would be a return to full board and committee membership for the next cycle and welcomed that things were beginning to return to normal as he had attended 107 engagements and that the Civic Carol Service was in the process of being organised.

The Mayor advised that he would be starting the New Year's Day Swim at GAFIRs, but that the Mayoress had volunteered to take a dip!

---

**TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDING ORDER NO 3.4 AND TO ANSWER PUBLIC QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER NO 3.5, SUCH QUESTIONS TO BE ANSWERED ORALLY DURING A TIME NOT EXCEEDING 15 MINUTES.**

There were no deputations

**Why is the minuting of Public Questions and responses not treated in the same way as Members' questions?**

The Policy and Organisation Board agreed in July that moving forward the answers to Member's questions would be recorded in full in the minutes at Council and Boards (but not supplementary). If Members wish to have the answers to public questions recorded in full in the minutes this is also possible.

The constitution does not reference how questions should be minuted, this has always been procedural, it does not need Board or Council approval to be actioned, therefore in future, the answers to Public Questions will also be recorded.

---

**THE DISPOSAL OF UNFINISHED BUSINESS FROM THE 31ST MARCH MEETING OF THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING ORDER 4.2.1 (G)**

The Mayor invited Councillor Hammond to address the Council to apologise for comments made at the meeting of the Council on 31<sup>st</sup> March 2021.

Councillor Hammond addressed the Council advising that his views were the same as many others across the country and that he was entitled to share his opinion.

He advised that he would not be apologising and would continue to stick up for his residents, speak out where necessary and would not be gagged. He advised that he did not wish to be involved in petty party politics.

Councillor Hammond left the meeting.

The Mayor read a transcript of the meeting and stated that Councillor Hammond had not specifically mentioned Conservative Councillors and was therefore directing his comments at all Members present.

The Mayor expressed disappointment that Councillor Hammond had not chosen to admit that he had made a mistake and had left the meeting.

The Mayor advised that he considered the matter closed.

---

**QUESTIONS (IF ANY) PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER NO 3.3**

There were none.

---

## RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARDS OF THE COUNCIL FEES AND CHARGES

At its meeting on the 29 September 2021 the Policy and Organisation Board considered the report of the Borough Treasurer detailing the proposed fees and charges for implementation from 1 January 2022 unless stated otherwise.

**Voting was thereupon taken and the names of the Members voting for and against the Recommendation and those abstaining were read to the Council:**

**FOR THE RECOMMENDATION:** Councillors Ballard, Bateman, Mrs Batty, Bradley, Beavis, Burgess, Rev Blackman, Carter, Casey, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Earle, Mrs Furlong, Herridge, Hutchison, Hylands, Johnston, Mrs Hook, Mrs Huggins, Jessop, Jones, Miss Kelly, Meenaghan, Mitchell, Mrs Morgan, Murphy, Pepper, Philpott, Raffaelli, Scard, Westerby, The Mayor **(20)**

**AGAINST THE RECOMMENDATION: (0)**

**ABSTENTIONS: (0)**

**COUNCIL RESOLVED:** That Council approve the fees and charges referred to in the report and appendix for implementation from 1 January 2022 unless stated otherwise.

---

## TO RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING PART II MINUTES OF THE BOARDS OF COUNCIL

COUNCIL RESOLVED That the following Part II Minutes be received:

Housing Board	23 June 2021
Community Board	7 July 2021
Community Board	08 September 2021
Climate Change Board	15 July 2021
Climate Change Board	16 September 2021
Economic Development Board	1 July 2021
Economic Development Board	22 September 2021
Policy and Organisation Board	20 July 2021
Policy and Organisation Board	29 September 2021

The Meeting concluded at 6.32 pm

The Mayor.